
56406 Federal Register / Vol. 89, No. 131 / Tuesday, July 9, 2024 / Notices 

University Pl., and Washington St., New 
York, AD79001604 

TENNESSEE 

Montgomery County 
Rexinger, Samuel, House (Additional 

Documentation), 813 College Street, 
Clarksville, AD77001284 

Smith-Hoffman House (Additional 
Documentation), 149 Plum Street, 
Clarksville, AD77001285 

VIRGIN ISLANDS 

St. Thomas District 
Hassel Island (Additional Documentation), S 

of Charlotte Amalie in St. Thomas Harbor, 
Charlotte Amalie vicinity, AD76001862 

Authority: Section 60.13 of 36 CFR 
part 60 

Sherry A. Frear, 
Chief, National Register of Historic Places/ 
National Historic Landmarks Program. 
[FR Doc. 2024–14994 Filed 7–8–24; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4312–52–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1406] 

Certain Memory Devices and 
Electronic Devices Containing the 
Same; Notice of Institution of 
Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on June 
3, 2024, under section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of 
MimirIP LLC of Dallas, Texas. 
Supplements to the complaint were 
filed on June 21, 2024, and June 24, 
2024. The complaint alleges violations 
of section 337 based upon the 
importation into the United States, the 
sale for importation, and the sale within 
the United States after importation of 
certain memory devices and electronic 
devices containing the same by reason 
of the infringement of certain claims of 
U.S. Patent No. 7,468,928 (‘‘the ’928 
patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 7,579,846 (‘‘the 
’846 patent’’); and U.S. Patent No. 
8,036,053 (‘‘the ’053 patent’’). The 
complaint further alleges that an 
industry in the United States exists as 
required by the applicable Federal 
Statute. The complainant requests that 
the Commission institute an 
investigation and, after the 
investigation, issue a limited exclusion 
order and cease and desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for 
any confidential information contained 

therein, may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help 
accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205– 
2000. General information concerning 
the Commission may also be obtained 
by accessing its internet server at 
https://www.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of 
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–2560. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority: The authority for 
institution of this investigation is 
contained in section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 
1337, and in section 210.10 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2024). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
July 3, 2024, ordered that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of 
infringement of one or more of claims 
1–3 of the ’928 patent; claims 1–28 of 
the ’846 patent; and claims 1–9 of the 
’053 patent; and whether an industry in 
the United States exists as required by 
subsection (a)(2) of section 337; 

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the 
plain language description of the 
accused products or category of accused 
products, which defines the scope of the 
investigation, is ‘‘certain DRAM 
memory, DRAM modules, DRAM 
Components, and Design-in DRAM; and 
smart devices, augmented and virtual 
reality products, automotive computers, 
automotive media control units, 
computers, laptops, desktops, 
workstations, tablets, and servers 
containing the same’’; 

(3) Pursuant to Commission Rule 
210.50(b)(l), 19 CFR 210.50(b)(1), the 
presiding administrative law judge shall 

take evidence or other information and 
hear arguments from the parties or other 
interested persons with respect to the 
public interest in this investigation, as 
appropriate, and provide the 
Commission with findings of fact and a 
recommended determination on this 
issue, which shall be limited to the 
statutory public interest factors set forth 
in 19 U.S.C. l337(d)(l), (f)(1), (g)(1); 

(4) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainant is: 
MimirIP LLC, 9330 LBJ Freeway, Suite 

900, Dallas, TX 
(b) The respondents are the following 

entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint is to be served: 
Micron Technology Inc., 6360 South 

Federal Way, Post Office Box 6, Boise 
ID 83716 

Hewlett Packard Enterprise Co., 1701 E 
Mossy Oaks Rd., Spring, TX 77389 

HP, Inc., 1501 Page Mill Road, Palo 
Alto, CA 94304 

Kingston Technology Company, Inc., 
17600 Newhope Street, Fountain 
Valley, CA 92708 

Lenovo Group Limited, 23rd Floor, 
Lincoln House, Taikoo Place, 979 
King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong, 
S.A.R. of China 

Lenovo (United States) Inc., 8001 
Development Drive, Morrisville, NC 
27560 

Tesla Inc., 1 Tesla Road, Austin, TX 
78725 

(c) The Office of Unfair Import 
Investigations, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite 
401, Washington, DC 20436; and 

(5) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
shall designate the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge. 

Responses to the complaint and the 
notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), as 
amended in 85 FR 15798 (March 19, 
2020), such responses will be 
considered by the Commission if 
received not later than 20 days after the 
date of service by the complainant of the 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation. Extensions of time for 
submitting responses to the complaint 
and the notice of investigation will not 
be granted unless good cause therefor is 
shown. 
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Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
complaint and in this notice may be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the complaint and this 
notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the complaint and this notice 
and to enter an initial determination 
and a final determination containing 
such findings, and may result in the 
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against 
the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: July 3, 2024. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2024–15059 Filed 7–8–24; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation Nos. 701–TA–712–715 and 
731–TA–1679–1682 (Final)] 

Ferrosilicon From Brazil, Kazakhstan, 
Malaysia, and Russia; Scheduling of 
the Final Phase of Countervailing Duty 
and Antidumping Duty Investigations 

AGENCY: United States International 
Trade Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: The Commission hereby gives 
notice of the scheduling of the final 
phase of antidumping and 
countervailing duty investigation Nos. 
701–TA–712–715 and 731–TA–1679– 
1682 (Final) pursuant to the Tariff Act 
of 1930 (‘‘the Act’’) to determine 
whether an industry in the United 
States is materially injured or 
threatened with material injury, or the 
establishment of an industry in the 
United States is materially retarded, by 
reason of imports of ferrosilicon from 
Russia, provided for in subheadings 
7202.21 and 7202.29 of the Harmonized 
Tariff Schedule of the United States, 
preliminarily determined by the 
Department of Commerce (‘‘Commerce’’) 
to be subsidized by the Government of 
Russia and alleged to be sold in the 
United States at less than fair value. 
Determinations with respect to imports 
of ferrosilicon from Brazil, Kazakhstan, 
and Malaysia, alleged to be subsidized 
by the Governments of Brazil, 
Kazakhstan, and Malaysia and alleged to 
be sold in the United States at less than 
fair value, are pending. 
DATES: June 28, 2024. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Lawrence Jones ((202) 205–3358), Office 
of Investigations, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436. Hearing- 
impaired persons can obtain 
information on this matter by contacting 
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202– 
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server (https://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for 
these investigations may be viewed on 
the Commission’s electronic docket 
(EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Scope.—For purposes of these 
investigations, Commerce has defined 
the subject merchandise as covering ‘‘all 
forms and sizes of ferrosilicon, 
regardless of grade, including 
ferrosilicon briquettes. Ferrosilicon is a 
ferroalloy containing by weight 4 
percent or more iron, more than 8 
percent but not more than 96 percent 
silicon, 3 percent or less phosphorus, 30 
percent or less manganese, less than 3 
percent magnesium, and 10 percent or 
less any other element. The 
merchandise covered also includes 
product described as slag, if the product 
meets these specifications. Subject 
merchandise includes material 
matching the above description that has 
been finished, packaged, or otherwise 
processed in a third country, including 
by performing any grinding or any other 
finishing, packaging, or processing that 
would not otherwise remove the 
merchandise from the scope of the 
investigations if performed in the 
country of manufacture of the 
ferrosilicon. Ferrosilicon is currently 
classifiable under subheadings 
7202.21.1000, 7202.21.5000, 
7202.21.7500, 7202.21.9000, 
7202.29.0010, and 7202.29.0050 of the 
Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the 
United States (HTSUS). While the 
HTSUS numbers are provided for 
convenience and customs purposes, the 
written description of the scope remains 
dispositive.’’ 

Background.—The final phase of 
these investigations is being scheduled 
pursuant to sections 705(b) and 731(b) 
of the Act (19 U.S.C. 1671d(b) and 
1673d(b)), as a result of affirmative 
preliminary determinations by 
Commerce that certain benefits 
provided by the Government of Russia, 
which constitute subsidies within the 
meaning of § 703 of the Act (19 U.S.C. 

1671b), are being provided to 
manufacturers, producers, or exporters 
of ferrosilicon in Russia, and that such 
products are being sold in the United 
States at less than fair value within the 
meaning of § 733 of the Act (19 U.S.C. 
1673b). Determinations with respect to 
imports of ferrosilicon from Brazil, 
Kazakhstan, and Malaysia, alleged to be 
subsidized by the Governments of 
Brazil, Kazakhstan, and Malaysia and 
alleged to be sold in the United States 
at less than fair value, are pending. The 
investigations were requested in 
petitions filed on March 28, 2024, by 
Ferroglobe USA, Inc., Beverly, Ohio and 
CC Metals and Alloys, LLC, Calvert City, 
Kentucky. 

For further information concerning 
the conduct of this phase of the 
investigations, hearing procedures, and 
rules of general application, consult the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, part 201, subparts A and B 
(19 CFR part 201), and part 207, 
subparts A and C (19 CFR part 207). 

Participation in the investigations and 
public service list.—Persons, including 
industrial users of the subject 
merchandise and, if the merchandise is 
sold at the retail level, representative 
consumer organizations, wishing to 
participate in the final phase of these 
investigations as parties must file an 
entry of appearance with the Secretary 
to the Commission, as provided in 
§ 201.11 of the Commission’s rules, no 
later than 21 days prior to the hearing 
date specified in this notice. A party 
that filed a notice of appearance during 
the preliminary phase of the 
investigations need not file an 
additional notice of appearance during 
this final phase. The Secretary will 
maintain a public service list containing 
the names and addresses of all persons, 
or their representatives, who are parties 
to the investigations. 

Please note the Secretary’s Office will 
accept only electronic filings during this 
time. Filings must be made through the 
Commission’s Electronic Document 
Information System (EDIS, https://edis.
usitc.gov). No in-person paper-based 
filings or paper copies of any electronic 
filings will be accepted until further 
notice. 

Limited disclosure of business 
proprietary information (BPI) under an 
administrative protective order (APO) 
and BPI service list.—Pursuant to 
§ 207.7(a) of the Commission’s rules, the 
Secretary will make BPI gathered in the 
final phase of these investigations 
available to authorized applicants under 
the APO issued in the investigations, 
provided that the application is made 
no later than 21 days prior to the 
hearing date specified in this notice. 
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